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THE CHURCHES OF DELAWARE

FRANK R. ZEBLEY

Author of “Along the Brandywine”

A history, in brief, of the nearly 900 churches
and former churches in Delaware as

located by the Author.
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On Jan. 13, 1909, the Bishop transferred the property to St. Elizabeth's
Church.

A few years later an addition was built, almost doubling the seating
capacity of the’church. The Banning property, 809 s. Broom St. was purchased
on Sept. 21, 1922. The rectory was established here. The second floor of the
church building was then remodeled for school purposes.

The corner-stone of the present parochial school was laid on Nov. 10,
1929, by Monsignor J. J. Dougherty assisted by Father Temple. On Mar. 17,
1940, six gold altar vases, in memory of Patrick and Elizabeth Quigley, were
used for the first time.

In 1943, a campaign was started to raise $150,000.00 with which to re-
place St. Elizabeth’s Church with a new church to be known as the Father
Temple Memorial Church.

The ground was broken for the new church at s. Clayton and Cedar Sts.
on Sun., afternoon, Oct. 21, 1945. The first spadeful of earth was turned by
the Most Rev. Edmond J. FitzMaurice, Bishop of Wilmington. A wooden cross
had been erected on the spot from which the main altar would rise and this
ground was blessed previous to the ground-breaking. The Bishop celebrated
Benediction from a wooden altar erected on the rear porch of the rectory.
Among those present were Fathers E. J. McDonough, Francis J. Desmond, Jos.
P. Kenny, V. Kenny, Francis S. Lynch and James M. Grant, the pastor.

As this is written the building is under roof and it bids fair to be one of
Delaware’s outstanding churches.

Holy Trinity Polish National R. C. Church was incorporated on May 21,
1913. They met in the former Olivet Church building at Chestnut and Adams
Sts. The life of this church was very short.

St. Stanislaus Kostka Church, R. C,, is located at 7th and Buttonwood
Sts. The corner-stone of the church was laid on Nov. 23, 1913, by Bishop
John J. Monaghan. He was assisted by the Most Rev. Fromentine and the Rev.
Fathers Thomas F. Waldron, Mahoney, John S. Gulcz and Jabowiskie, the
pastor. Large delegations of Polish Catholic societies were present.

The church was dedicated on Mar. 22, 1914, at 3 o'clock, by Bishop
Monaghan. He was assisted by the Rev. John S. Gulcz and the pastor, the Rev.
Simon Nawrocki. Many members of Polish Catholic societies turned out.

After being seriously damaged by fire, the church was rebuilt. It was
dedicated on Mar. 22, 1925, by Bishop Monaghan. He was assisted by Mon-
signor Stanislaus Wachowiak and the Rev. Martin Ryan. The Mass was cele-
brated by the Rev. Anthony C. Olexinski. Led by a band, a procession from
the rectory, 901 e. 7th St., to the church was held.

On July 24, 1927, the statue of St. Anna was blessed by Monsignor
Wachowiak assisted by Father Olexinski, the pastor.

St. Anthony’s R. C. Church. On Sept. 13, 1924, Bishop John J. Mon-
aghan appointed the Very Rev. J. Francis Tucker, O.S.F.S., as pastor of St.
Anthony’s Parish with instructions to proceed with the erection of a church.
The parish limits included all of the Italians in Wilmington. Subscriptions
toward the building were started in December, 1924. The first Mass was
offered on Christmas Day, 1924, in a temporary building later used as St.
Anthony’s Hall. The church was incorporated on Jan. 4, 1925. The title to
the church site at 9th and Dupont Sts. was acquired on Mar. 25, 1925. Ground
was broken on Mar. 8, 1925. At 4:30 P. M. there was a procession to the tem-
porary chancel. Father Tucker made a short speech as dis each of the building



committee: Ernest Di Sabitino, Alexander Petrillo, P. Del Campo and Louis
Fidance. Father Tucker turned the first spadeful of earth using a spade trimmed
with brown and white ribbon. He was followed by Father Fournier, O.S.F.S,,
who was followed by the committee. The earth was placed on the platform
and all of it was carried away as souvenirs. The spade is being preserved to
break ground for a parish school. A Mass was then offered.

The corner-stone of the church was laid on Sun., June 14, 1923, by the
Most Rev. John ]J. Monaghan assisted by the Very Rev. ]J. Francis Tucker, the
pastor. The benediction was pronounced by the Rev. John Knight, O.S.F.S.
This was the last public appearance of Bishop Monaghan previous to his re-
tirement because of failing health. On this occasion an address was delivered
by U. S. Senator Thomas F. Bayard. There was a large parade accompanied
by two bands.

The first Mass was celebrated in the new building on Palm Sunday, Mar,
28, 1926. The church was dedicated on Sun., June 13, 1926. Masses were
offered at 6:30 and 7:30 A. M. At 9:30 a large procession formed at the
Bishop’s home, 1301 Delaware Ave., to escort the dignitaries to the church.
Pontifical High Mass was celebrated by Archbishop Pietro Fumasoni-Blondi,
Papal Delegate to the United States, assisted by the Most Rev. Edmond ].
FitzMaurice, Bishop of Wilmington. At the same time, for the benefit of the
crowds who could not get into the chutch, a Mass was offered outside of the
church at a temporary chancel. A banquet was held at the Hotel Du Pont, at
which time Ernest Di Sabitino presented to Archbishop Fumasoni-Blondi a
golden key with a picture of the church. The Archbishop, in turn, presented
the key to Bishop FitzMaurice, believing that the most fitting place for the
key was in the home of the Bishop of Wilmington.

On Oct. 14, 1928, the Grotto of Our Lady of Lourdes was blessed by
Monsignor ]. J. Dougherty, assisted by the Very Rev. ]J. Francis Tucker.

The carnivoles held by St. Anthony’s Church were famous throughout this
section. All sorts of amusements were provided, Italian dishes were to be had
and Italian folk dances and songs were presented.

Father Tucker’s Silver- Jubilee as an ordained priest was observed with a
three-day celebration. A Solemn Mass of Thanksgiving was celebrated on Sun,
Oct. 4, 1936 and the services were brought to a close with a testimonial dinner
at the Hotel Du Pont on the evening of Oct. 6.

The campanile, or bell tower, was completed in 1938. The dedication
will not be held until the interior is fully completed. The baptistry was com-
pleted in 1943, but the stained-glass windows have not been installed, as yet.
Work on the interior of the church is still in progress. Little by little as they
could afford it, the first of the lateral chapels, the columns, the arches, the
lateral ceiling, small windows and medalions have been completed. It is Father
Tucker’s idea that the work should be done through the generations, leaving
to succeeding ones a share in the erection of an enduring monument to the
greater Glory of God.

On Dec. 8, 1944, the Feast of the Immaculate Conception, the Most Rev.
Edmond J. FitzMaurice blessed 2 hand-carved walnut pulpit and a hand-carved
walnut shrine of the Miraculous Medal. The pulpit was a gift of St. Anthony’s
Catholic Club and the shrine was a gift of the boys and girls in the armed
services. Bishop FitzMaurice preached the first sermon from the new pulpit.

Plans were announced on Feb. 17, 1946 for the erection of the Paul M.
Fournier Memorial Hall as sponsored by the St. Anthony Catholic Club. It is
to be located on the southerly side of Howland St., between Dupont and Scott
Sts. It will include dn auditorium, game rooms, library, kitchen and a gym-
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nasium. Father Fournier was the founder and the first chaplain of the club.

Something new in ground-breaking ceremonies, in Delaware, was accom-
plished on Sun. morning. Mar. 9, 1947, when Father Tucker, fully attired in his
priestly garments, climbed aboard a steam shovel, snatched the levers and took
a huge bite of earth to start the work on the Fournier Building.

Previous to this Father Tucker, assisted by the Revs. N. Di Ienno and J. E.
Woods after the celebration of Mass in the church proceeded to bless the
ground of the site.

Christ Our King R. C. Church. This parish was designated in March,
1926, by the Most Rev. Edmond ]. FitzMaurice, Bishop of Wilmington and
the Rev. John J. Lynch was appointed pastor. His first task was to erect the
necessary parish buildings. On Mar. 1, 1926, Bishop FitzMaurice purchased
land at 28th and Madison Sts. Father Lynch had a temporary chapel built on
the s. w. cor. of 28th and Madison Sts. The first Mass was celebrated on Sun.,
Sept. 5, 1926.

This temporary chapel was dedicated on the feast day of Christ Our King,
Oct. 31, 1926, by Bishop FitzMaurice. He was assisted by Vicar-General J. J.
Dougherty, the Rev. J. J. Corrigan and Father John ]. Lynch, the pastor. This
was believed to be the first church in the world to bear the name “Christ
Our King.”

At a meeting held on Jan, 2, 1927, trustees were elected and Christ Our
King Church assumed title to the property on May 27, 1927. The contract for
building the parochial school was awarded during the week of July 10, 1927.
The first anniversary of the temporary church was celebrated on Sept. 4, 1927.

The corner-stone of the parochial school was laid on Jan. 22, 1928, by
Bishop FitzMaurice, assisted by Father J. J. Lynch. The dedication services
were held on Sept. 9, 1928, at which time each room was blessed separately by
Bishop FitzMaurice. A procession from the chapel to the school was held. The
Bishop was assisted by Vicar-General J. J. Dougherty, Chancellor J. J. Bolen
and Father Lynch. An oration was delivered by the Rev. Dr. W. A. Scullen.
A benediction was said in the chapel.

The convent was completed and was opened for inspection on the morning
of May 15, 1932. It was blessed by Bishop FitzMaurice on that day.

In July, 1934, Masses were transferred to a chapel in the basement of the
school building and the temporary chapel was torn down.

During the summer of 1943, the altar from the Chapel of St. Catherine
of Siena at St. James' Protectory was installed in Christ Our King Chapel to
be used as the Altar of the Blessed Virgin.

The Chapel of the Blessed Sacrament, R.C., colored. This property, at
712 Scott St., was purchased by the Diocese of Wilmington on Nov. 22, 1935.
The house was remodeled for chapel Furposes and the garage in the rear was
converted into a tiny parochial school. The chapel was dedicated on May 16,
1943, by Bishop Edmond ]. FitzMaurice.

He was assisted by the Revs. Conrad F. Rebesher, S.S.]., and James Didas,
S.S.J. Mass was celebrated by the Most Rev. Louis B. Pastorelli, S.S.]., and the
sermon was delivered by the Very Rev. J. Francis Tucker. The work at this
chapel is conducted by the Josephite Fathers.

The Chapel of St. Theresa, the Little Flower, R. C. On Feb. 11, 1927, St.
Patrick’s Church purchased former public school No. 26 at 14th and Thatcher









7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

% excellent — deteriorated __X unaltered —x__ original site
— good — ruins —_ altered —— moved date
— fair —__ unexposed

Describe the present and original {if known) physical appearance

The Church of St. Anthony of Padua is an Italian Romanesque church built on
the northwest corner of West Ninth and North duPont Streets. It was built in
1926 to serve the Italian-American community located in the Westside section of
Wilmington. It has served as a catalyst for Italian cultural pride and remains
today as a uniquely Italian church in the city.

The church is approximately 187 feet long, 75 feet wide and 45 feet tall.
It is set diagonally on the lot. The outside walls are built of an uncoursed
rusticated ashlar stone, light brown in color. The walls are generally unor-
namented except for the north wall, which is the entrance. Square pilasters
with doric capitals form the corners of the church. Single story bays that run
the full length of the east and west walls contain the shrines and the chapels
of the various saints. Circular windows with 360 degree stone arches provide
windows for the shrines. Just over the shrines, five stained glass windows with
arched lentils form a clerestory.

There are rose windows on both the north and south walls of the church.
The window on the south wall has twelve petals, each depicting one of the twelve
disciples of Jesus.

The south wall (entrance) of the church is the most ornate facade. A por-
tico over the entrance, which is based on the portico of the church of St. Zeno
in Verona, Italy, is supported by two columns with Romanesque capitals which
have rams' heads in the corners. Behind the columns, two pilasters with
Romanesque capitals under two winged dragons facing away from each other frame
the central two doors. The lintel over the doors has a terra cotta relief of
the last supper. An arched shaped terra cotta relief of St. Anthony holding the
baby Jesus is over the lintel. The portico hood has a barrel vault with an arch
decorated with terra cotta reliefs of a pair of keys alternated with a papal
hat. The keystone of the arch has a terra cotta relief of a lamb with a cross
(symbol of the papacy). The portico hood has a medium pitch gable with a cruci-

fix on the peak.

On either side of the portico doors are doors with relatively plain
surrounds. All the doors are made of bronze and feature reliefs made by
Egididio Giaroli, designer of the doors of the Chapel of the Swiss Guards in
Vatican City. The reliefs on the main doors depict important saints of the 0ld
and New Testaments, while the theme of the side doors is of the life of St.
Anthony. In one of the reliefs, Giaroli and Father Balducelli, pastor of the
church when the doors were made, are represented as a cat and dog chasing each
other, in reference to their frequent bickering over the designs of the doors.


















8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below - :

___prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture ____ religion

— 14001498 ____ archeology-historic - ---. conservation- - - -- ___law ’ —__science

— 15001599 ___ agriculture —___economics o . literature i ___sculpture

—_1600-1699 _X_ architecture —__ education —__ military _X_social/

—__1700-1799 _X _art ___engineering ____ music humanitarian

——1800-1899 ___ commerce —_ exploration/settiement ____ philosophy — theater

X 1900~ - communications — industry — politics/government ___ transportation
— invention — other (specify)

Specific dates 1925 Builder/Architect John Mulrooney

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

Ever since its inception, the Church of St. Anthony of Padua, located on
the corner of West Ninth and North duPont Streets, was intended to be a focal
point for the neighborhood it serves. This church is being nominated under cri-
teria A for having fostered the cultural pride of the Italian community in
Wilmington through the programs and festivals it has sponsored. It is being
nominated under Criteria C because it is an excellent example of an American
interpretation of the Italian Romanesque style and because its interior is
decorated with murals, mosaics, shrine sculptures and other works of art by both
Italian and Italian-American craftsmen and artists. Its architecture reflects
the traditions and culture of the Italians of the community it serves.

The church's Italian identity, however, is not just reflected in the archi-
tecture, but also in the activities that take place under its guidance. The
first pastor of the church, the Rev. John F. Tucker, was appointed to the parish
because he was one of the few pastors in the diocese who spoke Italian fluently.
He believed in encouraging Italian cultural pride and continued Italian customs
through the church, even at a time when the Italian-American's cultural identity
was discouraged in an effort to Americanize the immigrants. Religious pro-
cessions and feasts, similar to those held in Italy, were held by the churches
and children were taught the Italian language.

St. Anthony of Padua, for whom the church was named, was the saint popular
with all the common people of Italy. Although a Portuguese national, he lived
most of his life in Italy, and was appointed preacher to all of Italy in 1222.
For ten years he traveled throughout Italy and France, denouncing the weakness
of the secular clergy and the sins of his society: greed, the luxurious living
of the wealthy and the oppression by the politicians. He died at Padua in 1231
and was canonized a year later.

To most Wilmington residents, the church is best known for its annual
Italian Festival, which was begun on a small scale in the 1920's. It features
Italian food and Italian folk dancing, as well as music and carnival rides. The
festival is usually held around the Feast of St. Anthony, which is on June 13.
The carnival attracted international attention in 1979 when an Italian televi-
sion network produced a special program on the festival.
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WASO Form - 177 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
{""R” June 1984) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
EVALUATION/RETURN SHEET

St. Anthony's Roman Catholic Church
New Castle County
DELAWARE Working No, APR ; 4 ‘984

Fed. Reg. Date: g2/ 5725

Date Due: S$/3 /5y ~ S4G/8 ¥

Action: __—ACCEPT 57/."5,/5/5/

[J resubmission Ml ered i t‘“'a RETURN
[} nomination by person or local government Pational Reglsten REJECT
L] owner objection Federal Agency:

[ appeal

Substantive Review: [ sample [ request [ appeal [CJ NR decision

Reviewer’s comments:

Recom./Criteria

Reviewer

Discipline

Date

see continuation sheet

technical corrections cited below
substantive reasons discussed below

Nomination returned for:

1. Name

2. Location

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use
Public Acquisition Accessible

4. Owner of Property

5. Location of Legal Description

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

Has this property been determined eligible? CJ yes Clno

7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

1 excelient "] deteriorated [ unaltered [ original site

| good [ ruins [ attered ] moved date
O tair O unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

] summary paragraph
[ completeness

[ clarity

[ alterations/integrity
1 dates

1 boundary selection



8. Significance
Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

Specific dates Builder/Architect
Statement of Significance f{in one paragraph)

O summary paragraph

[ completeness ~< P o H9A

] clarity

(1 applicable criteria

O justification of areas checked

[ relating significance to the resource
[ context

[ relationship of integrity to significance
[ justification of exception

[ other

9. Major Bibliographical References

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property
Quadrangle name
UTM References

Verbal boundary description and justification

11. Form Prepared By

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification
The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

national state local
State Historic Preservation Officer signature

title date

13. Other
] Maps

(] Photographs
I Other

Questions concerning this nomination may be directed to

Signed Date Phone:

Comments for any item may be continued on an attached sheet
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Castle Co. Recorder's office, Deeds Record; vol. K24, pp. 135, and 136; vol.Q24, p. 527; vol. D27, p.
101; vol. N37, p. 502.

118. ST. STANISLAUS KOSTKA'S PAROCHIAL SCHOOL, 1914--, 8" and Locust Sts.,
Wilmington.

Organized 1914 by Sisters of the Felician Order. Until November 1315, when a permanent
convent was established at 709 Buttonwood St., the school was attended by Sisters of the same
Order from St. Hedwig’s Parochial School (entry 99). First school conducted in several converted
frame dwellings on the present site, 1914-21. Present building dedicated 1921. A two story brick
structure.

Attendance record, 1914--, card file. Kept in school office in charge of the Sister Superior.

119. HOLY ROSARY PARISH, CHAPEL OF OUR LADY OF PROMOT SUCCOR, 1921--,
Seminole Ave. and Philadelphia Pike, Claymont.

Organized 1921. Incorporated 1922, Name suggested by an unknown person who contributed
toward the erection of the church. Building dedicated in 1922. A one story frame structure with a
cross over the entrance. First settled clergyman, Rev. Francis X. Fitzpatrick , 1921--, educated at
Holy Cross College, Worcester, Mass.; Mount St. Mary's Seminary, Emmitsburg, Md.

Minutes, 1921--, 2 vols.; Register, 1921--, (baptisms, including record of first communions), 1
vol.; (confirmations, including record of first communions), 1 vol.; (marriages), 1 vol.;(members), 1
vol.; (deaths), 1 vol.; Financial, 1921--, 2 vols.; Sunday School, 1921--, 2 vols.; at rectory,
Philadelphia Pike. Records of incorporation and deeds: New Castle Co. Recorder’s office, Deeds
Record; vol. C30, p. 235; vol. W30, p. 318; vol. 137, p. 31.

120. ST. FRANCIS HOSPITAL, 1932--, 8" and Clayton Sts. Wilmington.

Organized and incorporated February 2, 1923 through the efforts of the late Rt. Rev. John J.
Monaghan, then Bishop of Wilmington, and conducted by the Sisters of St. Francis. The funds to
erect the hospital were secured through the subscriptions of members of the various parishes in the
Diocese. The hospital is supported in part by the Diocese. Although a Catholic institution , people of
all creeds are admitted. A private chapel is maintained for the Sisters and nurses. Rev. Lawrence W.
McCarthy is chaplain. Main building dedicated 1924. A new wing added and dedicated 1938. The
building of stone construction is three stories. Wing also three stories. A bronze tablet on wall of lobby
contains names of founders. The ground on which the hospital is situated covers an entire city biock;
7" to 6" and Clayton to duPont Sts.

Register (baptisms) 1924--, 1 vol.; in hospital office. Records of incorporation and deeds: New
Castle Co. Recorder's office, Deeds Record: vol. Q31. p. 298; vol. Z32, p. 556; _Certificate of
incorporation; vol. Q17, p. 297; vol.N43, p. 221.

121-122. ST ANTHONY OF PADUA PARISH, Wilmington, 1924--,
121.  ST. ANTHONY OF PADUA CHURCH (ltalian), 1924--, 9" and duPont Sts. Wilmington.

It was organized in 1924 by Rev. J. Francis Tucker as the National Church



for the Italian people of Wilmington. From 1924 to 1926 services were held in a frame chapel on
present site. The building is still used for social affairs. The present church was opened and
dedicated in 1926. It is a one story stone structure of Lombard-Roman architecture. A Camanile
added in 1938. The church is built diagonally, according to Italian tradition. Over the main door is the
coat of arms of Oblates of St. Francis deSales. Sermons are in ltalian at early masses, English being
used at others. First settied clergyman, Rev. J. Francis Tucker, 1924--, educated at St. Mary’s
College Baltimore, Md. and Rome, ltaly.

Minutes, 1924--, 1 vol.; Register (baptisms, including record of converts, confirmations,
including record of first communions, marriages, deaths), 1924--, 1 vol.; Book of Announcements,
1924--. 1 vol.; Requiem Mass Record, 1924--, Burial Permits, 1924--, 1924-- yearly form; Financial,
1924--, 1 vol.; Sunday School, 1924--, 1 vol.; at rectory, 926 N. duPont St. Records of incorporation
and deed; New Castle Co. Recorder’s office, Deeds Record; vol. F33, p. 188; vol. L33, p. 444.

122. ST. ANTHONY OF PADUA KINDERGARTEN, 1933--, 9" and Scott Sts., Wilmington.

Organized 1935 and until January 1938 was conducted by lay-teachers. Since that date the
school has been conducted by four members of the Sisters of St. Francis and two lay-teachers. Only
children of kindergarten age attended. The building in which the kindergarten is held was formerly
Public School 11. A two story brick structure.

Records combined with those of the church.

123-124. CHRIST OUR KING PARISH, Wilmington, 1926--.
123. CHRIST OUR KING CHURCH, 1926--, 28" and Monroe Sts., Wilmington.

Organized in 1926 as an outgrowth of St. Patrick’s Church {entry 93). From 1926 to 1927
services held in small stucco chapel, at 28" and Madison Sts. The church was incorporated January
2, 1927 and the school which contains the present chapel was erected. First settled clergyman, Rev.
John J. Lynch, 1926--, educated at St. Charles’ College, Ellicott City, Md.; St. Mary’s College,
Baltimore, Md.; North American College, Rome, Italy.

Minutes, 1926--, 1 vol.; Register, 1926--, (baptisms, including record of converts}, 1 vol.;
(confirmations), 1 vol.; (marriages), 1 vol.; (deaths), 1 vol.; First communions, 1926--, 1 vol.; Parish
Census, 1926--, card index; Burial Permits, 1926--, 1 vol.; Financial, 1926--, 1 loose-leaf vol.; at
rectory, 414 W. St. Sunday School, 1926--,1 vol.; in possession of Sisters of St. Joseph's, 29" and
Madison Sts. Records of incorporation and deeds: New Castle Co. Recorder’s office, Deeds Record;
vol.. M34, p. 593; vol. B35, p. 56; vol. C35, p. 84l vol. N35, p. 60; vol. P35, p. 421; vol. 136. p. 127.

124. CHRIST OUR KING PAROCHIAL SCHOOL, 1927--, 28" and Monroe Sts. Wilmington.

Organized 1927 in charge of Sisters of St. Joseph. Present building dedicated 1927. A two story
stone structure. Basement of School is used for church services.
Attendance record, 1927--, card file, in school office in charge of Sister Superior.
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